
Heber City Corporation
City Council Meeting

03/04/2010
7:30 p.m.

REGULAR MEETING 

The Council of Heber City, Wasatch County, Utah, met in Regular Meeting on 03/04/2010 in 
the City Council Chambers in Heber City, Utah.

Present: Mayor David R. Phillips

Council Members Eric Straddeck
Nile Horner
Robert Patterson
Alan McDonald
Benny Mergist

Also Present: City Manager Mark K. Anderson
City Recorder Paulette Thurber
City Engineer Bart Mumford
City Planner Allen Fawcett
Chief of Police Ed Rhoades

Others Present: Ann Moulton, Doyle Moorman, Julie Moorman, Anthony Kohler, Mike 
Johnston, Fred Schloss, Tracy Taylor, John Emmanuel, Tracy Emmanuel, Chris Pedersen, Jacob 
S. Anderson, Maurice Chatwin, Liz Lewis, Wes Greenhalgh, Mindy Kohler, Mark Olpin, Donald 
Blackburn, Devin Bagley, Paul Kennard, Norm Eiting, Phil Lyons, Phil Wright, Kathryn Berg, 
Bob Brandt, Bryan Bresnan and others whose names were not legible.

Pledge of Allegiance: Councilman Nile Horner
Prayer/Thought: Councilman Eric Straddeck

Minutes: 01/12/2010 Special Meeting
02/18/2010 Regular Meeting
01/07/2010 Special Meeting – Wasatch Irrigation

Councilman Patterson moved to approve the minutes of the above listed meetings: Councilman 
McDonald made the second.  Councilman Straddeck noted the following corrections: 
Councilman Straddeck was not in attendance to the Special Budget Meeting held on 01/12/2010; 
His vote was NAY instead of AYE on the 02/18/2010 Regular Meeting topic of Irrigation Bylaws 
and strike the word “Council” on line 12, page 4 of 4, under Police K-9 Program.  Voting AYE 

Page 1 of 6 cc03042010



on minutes with corrections: Eric Straddeck, Nile Horner, Robert Patterson, Alan McDonald and 
Benny Mergist. 

OPEN PERIOD FOR PUBLIC COMMENT

Ann Moulton – thanked the City Council for the use of the old Social Hall. She indicated that in 
two weeks they would be having their first show.  She reported they had put in 700 hours of 
volunteer work in beautifying the building and $5,000 to renew the building.

Fred Schloss - did not want to appear negative but thought there were things that could be 
improved upon. He said he was not picking on the Recorder, but he objected to coming into this 
building and having that office closed. He suggested that was an official office of this City and 
the office should be open so that the public could take care of business. He wanted the Council to 
take action on this issue. He said he appreciated all of the Council and the work they were trying 
to do because these were hard times. 

APPOINTMENTS

Phil Lyons – Wasatch County Health Department – Annual Report (Separately Bound 
Materials): Phil Lyons and Phil Wright represented the Health Department. It was indicated Phil 
Wright would be retiring after 30 years with the Health Department and would be missed. 

Phil Wright stated it was a pleasure to meet with the Council. He said he had mixed emotions 
about retiring. He expressed appreciation of the support he had always received from Heber City 
officials. He indicated that by law he was required to give an annual report.  He explained the 
biggest issue this year had been the H1N1 flu shots and the biggest problem with that was the 
vaccine came in slowly. He said the vaccine was given to the most vulnerable people first and 
they had worked closely with emergency response personnel. Wright then reviewed the rest of 
the annual report, (printed report given to the Council with their materials) and asked for 
questions from the Council. 

Mayor Phillips said Wright had done a great job and would be missed. Wright asked the Council 
to continue to provide good Board Members. If the Board was made up of good people, the 
Health Department would be successful. 

Anderson said from a staff perspective, the City and the Health Department worked closely 
together with business licensing and Farmers Market.

Jason Boal, City Planner – 2010 Census Update (Tab 1):  Boal said it had been several 
meetings since he last updated the Council. He indicated that on March 10 there would be cards 
mailed out to let everyone know the census would be taking place. Then the next week, a 
different questionnaire / survey would be sent out. The hope was that people would fill it out and 
mail it back quickly. He indicated there would be a person in the library to help people with the 
questionnaire, if they needed it, he was placing an article in the City’s newsletter, there would be 
radio announcements, and it would be noticed on the Census website and the City’s website. He 



asked the Council if they had any other ideas of how to reach everyone. He said the Census 
Bureau was hoping to get a better response from this census than from the last census. 

ACTION ITEMS

Ordinance 2010-04 – An Ordinance Amending Section 2.48.010 Created Membership and 
Terms of Office, Respectively, of Heber City Municipal Code in relation to the Planning 
Commission (Tab 2):  Councilman McDonald suggested the words “advice and consent” be 
added to the language in 2.48.010, Created-Membership, and that any language about duties and 
powers from Title 18 be combined into one area of the Code Book. He wanted discussion about a 
seven or eight member commission and also wondered about people outside of City limits 
serving on the board. 

Councilman Horner said he was in favor of having discussion about allowing people living 
outside the City boundary to be a member. Councilman Patterson said he had two Planning 
Commission members come to him and expressed concern. They preferred having a Council 
member attend and be on the Commission even if not voting. He felt the issues were too 
complicated and it was beneficial for a Council person to be part of the Commission to better 
understand the issues and rationale behind the recommendations made.  Councilman Horner said 
there was no need for a City Council member to be there to just be a secretary. Councilman 
Straddeck said the reason he thought there was not a significant impact there by not having a 
City Councilmember on the Commission was because whatever decision was made, the whole 
Council had to be educated anyway. Councilman McDonald felt the Planning Commission had to 
act independently and on its own.

Councilman McDonald moved to approve Ordinance 2010-04 by adding the language “advice 
and consent” to 2.48.010 and combining Planning Commission Duties and Power from Title 2 
with language from Title 18 and put everything together in one spot.  He recommended repealing 
18.12.180 from Title 18 and moved to schedule a public hearing for the change. Voting AYE: 
Eric Straddeck, Nile Horner, Robert Patterson, Alan McDonald and Benny Mergist. 

Appointment to Planning Commission (Tab 3): Mayor Phillips recommended Dave Richards 
be appointed to the Planning Commission and Harry Zane reappointed to the Planning 
Commission.

Councilman McDonald moved to appoint Dave Richards as a member of the Heber City 
Planning Commission. Councilman Horner made the second. No discussion. Voting AYE:  Eric 
Straddeck, Nile Horner, Robert Patterson, Alan McDonald and Benny Mergist.

Councilman Straddeck moved to reappoint Harry Zane to the Heber City Planning Commission. 
Councilman Patterson made the second.  Councilman McDonald indicated he would like to see 
Zane as an alternate and appoint someone else to the Commission.  Councilman Horner said he 
wanted time to come up with even another name. Mayor Phillips called for a vote on the motion. 

Page 3 of 6 cc03042010



Voting AYE: Eric Straddeck, Robert Patterson and Benny Mergist. Voting NAY: Alan McDonald 
and Nile Horner.

Appointment – Sign Board Study Committee Members (Tab 4): It was indicated Echo Neal 
had requested her name be removed from the list as she was not able to serve. Staff was told to 
organize this board and move forward quickly.

Review recommendation from the Airport Advisory Board regarding the selection of 
Architect/Engineer that would design the Snow Removal Equipment Building at the Heber 
City Airport (Tab 5):  Kathryn Berg indicated the Airport Advisory Board had recommended 
Summit Engineering as the Architect/ Engineer for the design of the Snow Removal Equipment 
Building at the Airport in which funds had been awarded from the FAA. She said the Board had 
followed the process of sending out RFP’s, had several engineering firms apply, they narrowed 
those applicants down to three, and interviewed those three firms. She said Armstrong 
Engineering, the City’s Airport Consultant, was represented on the interview committee.  After 
the interview, a ballot was marked and counted. 

Councilman Straddeck asked if any of the Council were able to sit in on the interviews. Berg 
indicated that all Councilmembers were invited to take part in the process. 

Councilman Horner said it was his recollection that it had been discussed and the intent was to 
build the building for snow removal and also an office for the manager. Berg said the building 
would have three bays, a place for a shop, a pilot’s lounge, public restrooms, and in time, but not 
now, a manager’s office.  She said the manager’s office was not part of the contract with the 
FAA. Councilman Horner felt the main intent was for the manager’s office. Berg said under FAA 
regulations they could build the pilots lounge and the other things.  Councilman Horner said he 
found out today the City could not use FAA funds to build an office for the airport manager and 
therefore suggested the Lloyd building was fine for snow removal equipment and that he had 
said that since day one. However, it had always been rebutted that the City needed a place for the 
manager which was 50% of the reason the building was being built. Berg said there had always 
been plans for a manager’s office. Councilman Horner said he was not in favor of this building 
and spending any money on the airport with Heber City’s money when the City was in the 
financial crisis it was now in. 

Berg discussed the grants the City received each year from the FAA. Anderson explained the 
City got entitlement monies each year in the amount of $150,000 and said this project was using 
a combination of two years of entitlement money plus an additional $130,000 so there was 
approximately $430,000 in funds available for this building with a $18,000 match from Heber 
City. Berg said FAA money could not be used to remodel and repair existing buildings. Anderson 
said, if the building was not built, there was approximately $130,000 that was not entitlement 
money the City would lose. 

Councilman McDonald suggested with budget costs this year, he would put this on hold for a 
year.  Mayor Phillips said the matching money from the City would come from the profits made 
at the airport and would not be coming from the General Fund. Councilman Straddeck asked for 
clarification that the 5% the City was contributing to the project was money from Airport profits 



and restricted for use at the Airport. Berg said yes. Anderson said one thing Councilmen Mergist 
and McDonald may not be aware of was the Airport Board had evaluated the location of the 
existing hangars and had determined the snow removal building should be moved to 
accommodate a better location for future use.  Councilman Mergist said he had concerns about 
the issue and suggested using one of the existing hangars not currently being leased for storage 
and go ahead and demolish the Lloyd building. 

Berg said she would like the Council to think about whether they considered the airport to be a 
liability or an asset—was it a service or profit enterprise.  She said thinking about that should 
help the Council make their decision about this project. Berg said in her opinion the City had 
made significant progress at the Airport and was doing good things out there. She said she would 
hate to see the City backslide. 

Norm Eiting – Member of the Airport Advisory Board. Eiting said he wanted to bring the 
Council up to speed on the history of the airport. The Airport had a continuing updated Master 
Plan. This plan had always been provided to the FAA and the FAA had provided funding for 
most of the improvements out there except hangars based on the Master Plan which they 
approved. He continued the Master Plan was currently being updated and the FAA was helping 
with that.  He said he appreciated the support the Council had given to the Airport in the past and 
hoped the Council would continue to provide a better airport to the citizens of Heber and others. 
Councilman Mergist said he appreciated Eiting’s passion for the Airport but he (Mergist) needed 
to look at priorities and indicated he would prefer to see the resources of the City go to the Police 
Department Building because that was a crisis situation. Eiting indicated the Airport did not meet 
the safety requirements for the type of aircraft that used it. Discussion that the way the FAA rules 
were written, any pilot could land at the Airport at their discretion.  Discussion. Anderson 
summarized the City had the two grants, the City had expended the money for the airport 
engineering consulting company in Colorado and the City would lose $130,000 that was not 
entitlement monies if the City did not follow through with this project.  

Councilman Straddeck moved that the Council accept the recommendation of the Airport 
Advisory Board and approve Summit Engineering for the design/engineering of a Snow 
Removal Building at the Airport. Councilman Patterson made the second. Mayor Phillips asked 
for discussion. Councilman Straddeck asked if this could possibly go over budget. Anderson said 
he did not anticipate that.  Once the design was complete, it would be bid out and the bid 
awarded. Mayor Phillips called for the vote. Voting AYE:  Eric Straddeck and Robert Patterson. 
Voting NAY: Alan McDonald, Nile Horner and Benny Mergist.

Anderson asked if he should contact Armstrong Engineering and the FAA that this would not go 
forward. Councilman McDonald suggested possibly next year when the economy was better. 
Councilman Straddeck questioned the rationale behind that as the money was not coming from 
the City and the City’s portion was in a restricted fund that couldn’t be used anywhere else. 
Councilman Horner said that was not the case and that even Berg said the City could get the 
restricted money today and repay the loan from the General Fund. Anderson did not know if that 
was the case. He said the City had a retained earnings of $250,000 in the Airport Hangar Fund 

Page 5 of 6 cc03042010



and a debt of $1,500,000 for unsold hangars. Councilman Horner said from the beginning it was 
stated that Heber City could get the profit from the hangar sales to use as they saw fit. He said 
the Council had been misinformed by Anderson that the City could use the profits and now it 
was being said the profits had to be put back into the Airport.   Berg said the intent was that the 
City loan the money to build the hangars and the money that was loaned was to be paid back to 
the City and the profits go to the airport. Councilman Horner again said it was misrepresented to 
the Council that the City would realize the profit from the hangar sales and that money did not 
have to go back to the airport. Anderson said the intent was for any profits to be used for future 
matches of grant monies and apologized if he did not articulate that clearly to the Council. 
Mayor Phillips said it was time to give this a rest. He asked how many times someone was going 
to question why the prior Council voted for this because, in fact, they did vote for it. Discussion 
about the research Mark Smedley had done in relation to this issue and what he had concluded. 
Discussion about loan payback. Discussion that airports were generally owned by governmental 
agencies because they were considered part of the transportation plans for communities. 
Anderson said it was really a philosophy of those in power as to what value an airport was to the 
community and how much it was worth to support it. 

Approve Department of Transportation Aeronautical Operations Division – Project 
Application and Grant Agreement for State Aid for Development of Public Airports – 
Airport Lighting Rehabilitation (Tab 6): Councilman Patterson moved to approve the Project 
Application and Grant Agreement for State Aid for Development of Public Airports – Airport 
Lighting Rehabilitation. Councilman Mergist made the second. Voting AYE:  Eric Straddeck, 
Nile Horner, Robert Patterson, Alan McDonald and Benny Mergist.

9:06 p.m. Councilman Mergist moved to go into Closed Session to discuss Personnel. 
Councilman Patterson made the second.  Those going into Closed Session: Mayor David 
Phillips; Councilmembers Straddeck, Horner, Patterson, McDonald, and Mergist; City Manager 
Mark Anderson; City Recorder Paulette Thurber; and Sgt. Jason Bradley, Police Department. 

9:22 p.m.
The Council moved back into Open Session and adjourned.

                                                                              
Paulette Thurber, City Recorder


